UNITED
NATIONS E

. . Distr.
Economic and Social GENERAL
Council E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
5 June 1997
ENGLI SH

Original: FRENCH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS
Fifty-third session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 53rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 10 April 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)
| ater: M . STROHAL (Austri a)
| ater: M. SOMOL (Czech Republic)
CONTENTS

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUVAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N
ANY PART OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER
DEPENDENT COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a)  QUESTION OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Comn ssion
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-12084 (E)



E/ CN 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.40 a.m

QUESTI ON OF THE VI OLATI ON OF HUVAN RI GHTS AND FUNDAMENTAL FREEDOMS | N
ANY PART OF THE WORLD, W TH PARTI CULAR REFERENCE TO COLONI AL AND OTHER
DEPENDENT COUNTRI ES AND TERRI TORI ES, | NCLUDI NG

(a) QUESTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS I N CYPRUS (agenda item 10) (conti nued)

(E/CN. 4/1997/5, 6 and Add.1 and 2, 8, 9, 12 and Corr.1 and Add.1 and Corr. 1,
48-50, 51 and Add.1, 52-54, 55 and Corr.1, 56-59, 60 and Add.1, 61, 62 and
Add. 1, 63, 64, 113, 114, 118, 123-125, 129 and 132; E/ CN. 4/1997/ NGO 3-6, 12,
14-17, 21, 25, 27 and 37; A/51/457, 460, 466, 478, 479, 481, 490, 496, 538 and
542/ Add. 1)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that consultations were continuing within the regi ona
groups on whet her China should be allowed to make a second statenment under
agenda item 10

2. Ms. CHOSE (India) said that to refuse a delegation the right to take the
floor would be unfortunate.

3. M. de | CAZA (Mexico), speaking on a point of order, asked for the
meeting to be suspended; under rule 42 of the rules of procedure, the
Chai rman shoul d take an i medi ate decision on the matter.

4. The neeting was suspended at 10.50 a.m and resuned at 11 a.m

5. The CHAI RMAN announced that, follow ng the consultations within the
regi onal groups, it had been decided, exceptionally, to allow China to nmake
a second statenent.

6. M. WANG Guangya (China) said that his Governnment was concerned at
the situation in Cyprus. The resolutions of the General Assenbly and the
Security Council calling for respect for the independence, sovereignty,
territorial integrity and status of Cyprus as a non-aligned State should
be impl emented without further delay. That would not only neet the
expectations of Cypriots but would also contribute to ensuring stability,
peace and devel opnent in the region. In that connection, China

whol eheartedly supported the Secretary-General's efforts at nediation

7. DATO HI SHAMMUDI N TUN HUSSEI N (Mal aysi a) said that human rights were
bei ng perverted and stripped of their universality and inalienability by
certain countries, which were using themas a political weapon against their
adversaries. By castigating countries for being slowin effecting socia
reforms, the North was displaying total disdain towards States that had
struggl ed for nmany years to regain their |iberty and human dignity, of which
they had been di spossessed by the very countries now accusing them It was
wi th good reason that the lectures of the devel oped world aroused scepticism
coming as they did fromcountries that applied doubl e standards based on their
own interests or bias - for exanple, by condeming Myanmar while coddling
Israel. The passivity of the European nations in the face of the genocide
committed on their doorstep in Bosnia had torn away the |ast shreds of noral
authority which the West had arrogated to itself. The establishnment of




E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 3

sust ai nabl e denocracy required a certain anmount of time to create or
strengthen institutions and change attitudes. Abrupt transplants never
worked. It should be renenbered that it had taken the United States

al nost 100 years after the Declaration of Independence to abolish slavery

and still another 100 years to prohibit racial segregation in schools.
Furthernore, a belief in universal values did not nean that respect for the
di versity of other notions and priorities of human rights should be forgotten
Many Western nations, incapable of recognizing their own inadequaci es,

al l owed thensel ves to |l ecture others on drug trafficking, global warm ng and
i ndi vi dual freedons while ignoring the social consequences, in terms of drug
addi ction, pollution and decadence, of the values they were promoting. The
recent trend towards naking aid contingent upon human rights and denocracy had
further sharpened the North-South controversy.

8. Extrenme care should therefore be exercised in devel oping Western

noti ons of denocracy and human rights in tradition-bound societies. It

was for the people thensel ves to deci de whether and how to inplenment refornmns.
The international comunity should intervene only in countries where the
peopl e's aspirations for denocracy were being repressed by the authorities.
South Africa was an exanple of how effective popul ar novenents coul d be when
t hey enjoyed international support.

9. The inability of the international community to guarantee the nost
basic of rights - the right to security and to live free of fear - as in the
Great Lakes region of Africa and in the former Yugoslavia, should pronpt it
to reflect on the whole human rights debate.

10. Wth respect to Bosnia and Herzegovina, he was greatly concerned

that the perpetrators of sonme of the worst crinmes were still at |arge.

Peace would falter if it was not acconpani ed by rapid reconstruction and
rehabilitation neasures. Ravaged by war, that country needed massive
foreign aid to build housing and revitalize industry, to meet the pressing
needs of returning refugees and di spl aced persons, and to create jobs for
denobi |l i zed soldiers. The next donor conference should not be unnecessarily
del ayed.

11. In a world where States by and large still had to fend for thensel ves,
given the problens they faced - poverty, disease, socio-econonic inequities,
scarcity of resources, corruption, abuse of authority and suppression of
freedom responsibility for advancing human rights rested above all with the
State and its people. Except in cases of gross violations of human rights,
the international conmunity shoul d encourage cooperation and persuasi on, not

confrontation and suspicion. In the words of the 1992 Hunman Devel opnent
Report, “Denobcracy is a native plant - it may wilt under foreign pressure”

12. Ms. CHOSE (India) said that, in resolution 32/130, the Genera

Assenbly had deci ded that in approaching human rights questions within the
United Nations system the international comunity should accord priority to
the search for solutions, a principle that had been reiterated in Vienna.
However, the Conmi ssion seened to have adopted an approach that was both
adversarial and selective, as denonstrated by the calls to nonitor, uncover
and condemm hurman rights violations with a view to putting pressure on certain



E/ CN 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 4

Governnments and enbarrassi ng them That approach was a source of acrinmony and
certainly did not lead to effective solutions to genuine problens. |t npst
certainly did not | ead to cooperation

13. Menber States and non-governnmental organi zations (NGOs) bore
responsibility for the climate of distrust and antagoni sm whi ch, whether
reflected in North-South confrontation or in the cynical use of human
rights for political ends, damaged the credibility and effectiveness of
the Comm ssion. The tinme had perhaps cone to adopt another approach, one
based not on allegations but on verified facts, and centred around persuasion
Moni t ori ng nmechani sns shoul d be set up in consultation with the country
concerned, mandated primarily to perform “good offices”. It would be for
the particular country to study the reports and recomendati ons of those
mechani sms, take action, if necessary call upon the advisory services and
techni cal cooperation programme of the Centre for Human Rights, and inform
t he Conm ssion of the action taken

14. Wil e she supported the efforts of nbst of the special rapporteurs,
she believed they should not only be fact-finders but should also play a
“good offices” role on behalf of the Commi ssion. It nust be acknow edged

that the mechani snms set up by the Comm ssion did not always function and

were sonetinmes perceived, depending on the political regime or culture
concerned, as instrunents of pressure to inpose one systemon another. The
guesti on why the nechani sns of other intergovernnmental organizations appeared
to be nore acceptable and therefore nore effective needed to be exam ned.

The Comnmi ssion's objective was to protect and pronote human rights, and not
the tools it had itself devised. Furthernore, as there was no country in

the world that was conpletely free of human rights violations. Menber States
shoul d not sit in judgenent but should engage in sonme introspection and an
exchange of experience about the different methods used to conbat those

uni versal problens.

15. It was in that spirit that she wished to informthe Conm ssion of
India's nost recent efforts to protect human rights. Efforts currently

under way in conjunction with representatives of civil society, including
the press and NGCs, were ainmed at extending the effective protection of the
rule of law to all segnments of society and all regions of a subcontinent

that was as vast as it was diverse. Problens renained, some of which had
been aired before the Conmi ssion because of the outbreaks of violence to

whi ch they had given rise. Her delegation believed that political extrem sm
had no place in a denocracy. Nonetheless, India was endeavouring to address
t he underlying causes of the problens through dial ogue, a search for politica
solutions and increased efforts to achieve general econom c devel opnent.

16. Her Covernnent had initiated unconditional dialogue with mlitants in
the north-east, while sinultaneously announcing a rmulti-billion-rupee economc
package for the region. 1In the Punjab, a state where a | ong period of

external intervention had sustained a particularly ruthless wave of violence,
denocratic el ections had been held and investnments, both Indian and foreign,
had started to flowin. Progress had al so been nade in Janmu and Kashmir as
a result of the election of a denpcratic governnent. The elections had been
held in response to the desire of the majority to exercise its right to
self-determnation. The security situation had al ready inproved and



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 5

nearly 300 mlitants had surrendered their arnms. At the same time, the

state governnent had | aunched programmes for industrial and rural devel opment
and for the reintegration of forner nmilitants into civilian life. Her

del egation believed that neasures ained at steering young people away fromthe
path of violence, along with the strict supervision of the security forces
engaged in conbating mlitancy, would encourage respect for human rights and
econom c devel opment. Her Covernnent had never condoned any human rights
violation commtted by the security forces, as denonstrated by the information
sent to the various subordi nate bodies of the Conm ssion, which contained
details of the punishnments neted out.

17. Her Government adnmitted that it still had a long way to go, especially
since externally-financed arnmed mlitants were creating a particularly
difficult climate by attacking innocent civilians. Violence, however, was a
doubl e- edged sword, which m ght sone day be turned agai nst those who w el ded
it. India was determ ned to achieve the noble objectives it had set itself in
pronmoting and protecting human rights; Pakistan would be well advised to do
the sane. As Dag Hanmarskj 6l d had said, it was dangerous to believe that any
i ndi vidual, any nation or any ideol ogy had a nonopoly on rightness, liberty
and human dignity.

18. M. Strohal (Austria) took the Chair.

19. M. PAGUAGA FERNANDEZ (Ni caragua), quoting an African poet, said that
“there is sonething abom nable in silence”. 1In the face of the systematic
viol ati ons of human rights in Cuba, it would be unpardonable to remain silent.
He accordingly asked M. Zuiiga to present the situation of human rights in
that country.

20. M. ZUNIGA (Nicaragua) said that since 1975 the Commi ssion had
heard compl aints of crines conmtted by the Cuban Governnent throughout
its 38-year reign.

21. M . FERNANDEZ (Cuba), speaking on a point of order, said it was
di sgraceful for the Commi ssion to give the floor to M. Zufiiga, a notorious
mercenary and terrorist.

22. M. PAGUAGA FERNANDEZ (N caragua) said it was unacceptable for such
statenents to be nade agai nst a nenber of a del egation

23. The CHAI RMAN gave the floor to M. Zuiiiga.

24. M. ZUNIGA (Nicaragua) said that the Cuban Government had never
responded to the nmany questions raised by the Wrking G oup established
under Comm ssion resolution 1988/106 following its mssion to Cuba

(E/ CN. 4/ 1989/ 46) .

25. In Cuba, in conformty with article 5 of the Constitution, the
executive branch was in the hands of the Comuni st Party, and, consequently,
of its suprene |eader, Fidel Castro. As article 99 of the Constitution
prohi bited any change in the political, social and econom c reginme of the
soci alist State, what was involved was a | egal, perpetual dictatorship



E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 6

26. As to the judicial branch, according to article 87 of the Constitution
it was subordinate to the popul ar assenblies, which in turn reported to the
Comuni st Party. The result was that the judiciary was al so under the Party's
control. That was why the Special Rapporteur on the human rights situation in
Cuba had recently recommended that the Cuban authorities should inplenment
refornms to ensure the independence of the judiciary.

27. The Penal Code listed all sorts of so-called offences with which
political opponents or human rights activists could be charged. For exanple,
M. José Lbépez Quintas, a university professor, had been found guilty of

di ssemi nating “eneny propaganda” and sentenced to five years in prison for
sending the rector of the Central University a letter expressing his

di sagreenment with the Governnent's policy. Since comng to power in 1959,
the Cuban regi ne had established the death penalty. The number of prisoners
who had been executed was kept secret; they were buried in commobn graves,
whose | ocation was not revealed to their famlies.

28. According to the National Cuban-Anerican Foundation
since 1959 10, 000 people had died as a result of the repression
That figure testified to the climate of terror in Cuba.

29. In October 1996, the Inter-Anmerican Comr ssion on Human Ri ghts had
adopted resolution 47/96, in which it had condemmed the Cuban Government for
sinking the 13 de marzo tugboat with 72 persons on board, who had been
attenpting to flee Cuba. Forty of them had died, including 20 children. Nor
was that an isolated incident. In 1992, seven people, including a 13-year-old
boy, had been nmurdered in simlar circunstances by coastguard vessel No. 554
(see E/CN. 4/1993/39). On 24 February 1996, two civilian aircraft carrying out
a sea search outside Cuban territorial waters, as had been confirned by the
International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO, had been shot down and

four persons had been killed.

30. Cuban citizens did not have access to the best hotels, beaches and
restaurants of their own country. Unlike foreigners, they were not
entitled to set up their own business. The salaries of Cubans working for
forei gn-owned conpanies were paid in dollars directly by the Government,
whi ch gave only a tiny percentage, in local currency, to the enpl oyees.

31. As to health, there were two systens of nedical care. Only foreigners
and elite nmenbers of the Communi st Party had access to pharnaci es and
hospitals where the quality of care was as good as in the devel oped worl d.
The rest of the population were faced with severe shortages of medicines and
medi cal suppli es.

32. The probl em of Cuba was not one of political confrontation with the
United States, but rather one between the Cuban people and the regi ne that
was oppressing it and had done away with all its rights. |If Castro' s envoys

only wanted to tal k about the trade enbargo, which they called a “bl ockade”

it was in order to avoid having to answer for the atrocities conmtted by the
regi me, which would obviously never allow the Special Rapporteur to travel to
Cuba.



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 7

33. M. AKRAM (Pakistan) said that his del egati on agreed with the opinion
expressed by the Secretary-Ceneral on 9 April that “gross violations of human
rights invariably go hand-in-hand with situations which may threaten peace and
security and are likely to degenerate into confrontation”. That was the case,
for exanmple, in Bosnia and Herzegovi na, where the peace agreenments must be

i mpl enented and the war crimnals brought before the International Tribunal in
The Hague, and in Palestine, where the Israeli authorities nust cease taking
unil ateral neasures that threatened the peace process and must recogni ze the
right of the Pal estinian people to self-determ nation

34. The Secretary-Ceneral had also said that in the field of preventive
di pl onacy, the United Nations had not been able to act every tine it had
been called for. That observation also applied to Jammu and Kashmr,
where the savage repression by the Indian forces had al ready caused nore
t han 50,000 victins, 99 per cent of themcivilians, including wonen and
children. 1n a volum nous report, the Jamu and Kashm r Lawyers

Associ ation had |isted the human rights violations, including acts of
torture and rape, against the popul ation

35. In 1996, the Indian Government had organi zed sham el ections in Jammu
and Kashmir, which had led to a puppet regime being set up in Srinagar
During the elections, there had been one Indian soldier for every elector
and, unsurprisingly, the Indian Governnent had refused to allow foreign
observers to attend that masquerade. |If the Indian Governnment was

convi nced that nost of the people wanted Jammu and Kashmir to continue to

be adm nistered by India, why did it not, in conformty with the resol utions
of the Security Council and under international supervision, organize a

ref erendum on sel f-rul e?

36. Paki stan was ready to pursue a serious dialogue with India on al
guestions of common interest, and wel conmed the fact that the Mnisters for
Foreign Affairs of the two countries had met in March in New Del hi and deci ded
to hold another neeting shortly in Islambad. However, if the dialogue was to
be fruitful, the Indian Governnent would have to cease violating human rights
in Jammu and Kashnir, thereby paving the way towards a just and acceptable
solution, nanely, the organization of a referendumthat would allow the people
to exercise their right to self-determ nation

37. M. WRAJUDA (I ndonesia), speaking on behalf of the nenber States
of the Organization of the Islanmic Conference (O C), said that, in the
face of the sharp increase in conflicts and poverty in many regions, the
O C renuai ned determ ned - in accordance with the true spirit of Islam
especially its nmessage of tol erance, justice, understandi ng, noderation
and respect for human rights and dignity - to work with the internationa
comunity in addressing those chall enges by seeking just, conprehensive
and durabl e solutions on the basis of the principles enshrined in the
United Nations Charter and of respect for international |aw

38. Wth regard to Palestine, the OC was extrenely concerned at the acts
of violence comritted in recent weeks by the occupying Israeli authorities,
resulting in hundreds of injuries and deaths anbng Pal estinian civilians.



E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 8

The deteriorating human rights situation in the occupied Pal estinian
territories risked endangering the peace process, which could be advanced
only by diplomatic efforts.

39. For that reason the O C called on the Conmi ssion to establish a
strengt hened procedure in which the Government of |srael would be

conpel led to cease its provocation and excessive use of force. The
menber States of the O C also demanded the i medi ate and full cessation
of the construction of the Jew sh settlenment in Jabal abu Ghneimin the
occupied Palestinian territory and all other settlenent activities, and
further demanded that the authorities cease taking illegal neasures in
Jerusalem so that the M ddl e East peace process could be resuned. |Israe
shoul d also fully inplenent all the agreenents signed, and also the

resol utions of the United Nations, in particular Security Counci
resolutions 242 (1967), 338 (1973) and 425 (1978), respect the commtnents
it had undertaken and accept the | and-for-peace formla.

40. H s del egati on was gravely concerned at the persistent violations of
human rights in Bosnia and Herzegovina, and in other parts of the territory
of the former Yugoslavia, particularly those relating to the return of
refugees and di spl aced persons to their hones and the de facto restrictions
on freedom of novenent. There were also reports of escalating acts of
aggression - killings, illegal evictions, explosions and so forth - notivated
by the victinms' national origins.

41. Wil e sone progress had been nade in the inplenmentation of the

Dayt on Peace Agreenent, extremely worrisonme problens remained, such as the
difficulties in arresting indicted war crimnals and disbursing funds for
reconstruction work. His delegation was al so concerned at attenpts to appease
t hose responsible for acts of aggression, who were pronoting the country's
secession. That attitude was |iable to undermine efforts at peace and
reconciliation.

42. It was, therefore, extremely inmportant that the Comnr ssion should draw
a clear line between victins and aggressors. It nmust make it clear to al
the parties concerned that to delay the reconstruction process in Bosnia and
Her zegovi na woul d puni sh both victinms and aggressors and jeopardi ze efforts
to pronote respect for human rights. The international community shoul d
strengthen political and material support for the International Crimna

Tri bunal

43. M. Sonpbl (Czech Republic) resuned the Chair.

44. M. SELEBI (South Africa) said that his Government was aware of how
much remai ned to be done for human rights, and especially econom c and
social rights, to becone a reality for all South Africans, notw thstandi ng
the progress made. He wel conmed the recent progress towards peace,
denocratization and respect for human rights in such countries as Angol a,
Mozambi que, El Sal vador, Guatermal a and Haiti.

45, He woul d deal with four themes that had a negative inpact on hunman
rights. The first concerned different |levels of power within a country.
Where one party to a conflict, usually the Government, had superior force



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 9

or power to others, human rights violations were not unusual. Israel was an
exanpl e of what happened when there was an inbal ance of forces: on the

one hand, people demanded their freedom and, on the other, in the face of
overwhel mi ng internati onal condemation, the Governnment w shed at all costs
to establish a settlenent in East Jerusalem contrary to the spirit of the
Gsl o Accords. One could only note with sadness the deterioration of the
peace process. South Africa had recently joined other nmenber States of

the Organi zation for African Unity (OQAU) in urging Israel inmediately to
halt its confiscation of Palestinian territories and the construction

of new settlements, as they were in violation of Security Counci
resolutions 242 (1967), 465 (1980) and 478 (1980) and could lead to the
col | apse of the peace process.

46. In Nigeria, nmuch remained to be done in the field of human rights,
al t hough sone positive steps had been taken. His Government wel coned the
hol di ng of |ocal elections, although he regretted that not all opposition
parties had participated. It was also concerned at reports of continuing
vi ol ati ons of human rights, and called on the authorities to rel ease al
political prisoners and abide by their obligations under internationa
human rights instrunents.

47. On Myanmar, his delegation had noted with regret that the Specia

Rapporteur had still not been authorized to visit the country and was
troubl ed by the restrictions placed on Aung Sang Suu Kyi and other |eaders.
It urged the Governnent to engage in a dialogue with all |eaders of the

opposition and to put an end to extrajudicial executions, torture and
arbitrary arrests.

48. There were continuing reports fromthe Sudan of serious violations of
human rights and fundanmental freedonms (summary executions, detention w thout
trial, forced displacenent and torture). South Africa urged all the parties
to the conflict to renewtheir efforts to reach a negotiated settl enent.

49. The second area was official silence in the face of human rights
violations. As it had done vis-a-vis the apartheid regi me, the Conmi ssion
shoul d speak out whenever human rights violations occurred. That task could
not be left to NGOs alone. Care nust also be taken to avoid using cultura
and religious differences as a pretext for violating the rights of others.
Hi s del egati on was concerned at reports of serious violations of human rights
i n Afghani stan and called on all parties to respect the rights and freedons of
every individual, regardl ess of sex, ethnic origin or religion. Simlarly,

al t hough the human rights situation in Cyprus had been on the Conm ssion's
agenda for many years, no action had been taken. The international comrunity
could not remain silent when a country had part of its sovereign territory
under foreign occupation. It was essential that the relevant Security Counci
resol uti ons shoul d be inpl ement ed.

50. The precedi ng observations were best illustrated by the conflict in the
Great Lakes region. It was in part the silence of the international community
that had led to the tragic events in Rwanda in 1994 and, nore recently, in
Burundi and Zaire. South Africa welconmed the commitnment of the Governnent

of Rwanda to protect human rights, as well as the role played by the

United Nations Field Operation in that country. Hi s Government, which had



E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 10

| earned with sadness of the deaths of five nmenbers of the Field Operation
urged that every effort should be made to ensure safe access for internationa
observers and relief workers. It called on the Government of Burundi to

do everything in its power to put an end to the human rights violations,
especially those alleged to have been conmmitted by the security forces, and to
return to constitutional rule. It was currently endeavouring, with others, to
pronmote a national dialogue in Burundi. It was also trying to contribute to
finding a peaceful solution to the crisis in Zaire.

51. Thirdly, South Africa was alarned by the increase in acts of terrorism
t hroughout the world. It condemmed such acts of violence against civilian
popul ations. It was also concerned at the rise of State terrorism It was

vital that Governnents shoul d observe the rule of law, no matter how tenpting
it mght be to resort to extrajudicial nethods.

52. Gven its history, South Africa was particularly sensitive to racism
mani f estati ons of which continued throughout the world. He hoped that the
reluctance of some States to hold a world conference on racismdid not inply

a desire to be silent about the horrors of racism It was not enough nerely
to express outrage at blatantly racist incidents. Practical steps al so needed
to be defined in order to obliterate the nore subtle forns of racism such

as those practised against migrants, mnorities and foreigners. Budgetary
consi derations coul d never excuse silence or inaction on the part of the

i nternational comunity.

53. M. KRYLOV (Russian Federation) said that the end of the cold war

and the energence of new denocraci es had strengthened freedomall over the
worl d. Neverthel ess, human rights were still being violated in internal and
international conflicts. |In certain regions, isolationismand aggressive
nati onali smwere spreading. On the eve of the fiftieth anniversary of the
Uni versal Declaration of Human Ri ghts, observance of those rights should be
one of the centrepieces of a new conception of international security.

54. The belief of the Russian authorities in the equality and inalienability
of human rights was now reflected in practice. For the first time inits

hi story, Russia had denocratically re-elected a Head of State. The
presidential and parlianentary el ections had been held on tinme and in
accordance with electoral laws. A whole range of new Codes and | egislation
had been adopted to inprove the systemof civil control over the activities of
State bodies.

55. Unfortunately, the reform process had been acconpani ed by declining
production and delays in the paynent of salaries, pensions and all owances.
Citizens were therefore demandi ng that the Governnment honour its conmtnents
to society.

56. Russia was harnoni zing its legislation with the standards of the

Counci| of Europe, which it had joined in 1996. It had signed the European
Convention on Human Ri ghts and the European Convention for the Prevention of
Torture and I nhuman or Degradi ng Treatnment or Punishnment, the Council of

Eur ope's Framework Convention for the Protection of National Mnorities and

t he European Charter on Local Self-CGovernnent. Draft |egislation guaranteeing
the right to forward individual conmplaints to the European Comm ssion on Human



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 11

Ri ghts woul d be subnitted to Parliament, and a decision would soon be taken on
Russi a's accession to the European Social Charter. New |laws on religious
freedom freedom of assenbly and alternative mlitary service were under
consideration. Since August 1996, Russia had adhered to a noratorium on
capital punishnment, and the Mnister for Foreign Affairs had been authorized
to sign Protocol No. 6 to the European Convention on Human Ri ghts concerning
the abolition of the death penalty. However, major awareness-rai sing was
needed to persuade Parlianment and the public that the death penalty was not
the nost effective way of preventing serious crimnal offences.

57. The crisis in Chechnya had proved a thorn in Russia's side. Hostilities
had ceased in 1996, but problens remai ned. Negotiations were continuing and
confidence was being built step by step, but could easily be destroyed; it
coul d be dangerous to speed up the negotiations. The constant principle
under|yi ng Russian policy was that all internal structural problens should be
settled in accordance with the Russian Constitution and only by peacefu
means. During the crisis in Chechnya, the Russian Federation had cooperated
closely with the United Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Ri ghts and the
speci al nmechani snms of the Conmi ssion, and the Government felt that its
efforts to settle the conflict had fully net all the concerns expressed in
the Chairmen's statenents to the fifty-first and fifty-second sessions of the
Conmi ssi on.

58. Despite the tensions of the current situation in the Mddl e East, Russia
hoped that the search for nutually acceptable solutions within the framework
of the Madrid Principles and all the agreenents that had been reached woul d

i nprove Arab-lsraeli relations. H's Governnment, which was a co-sponsor of the
M ddl e East peace process, intended to make a very active contribution to it.

59. Ni ne years after the withdrawal of Soviet troops from Af ghani stan
former Soviet servicenen were still in captivity there. There were constant
provocati ons on the Afghan/ Tajikistan border. |In their joint statenent

of 4 Cctober 1996, Russia, Kyrgyzstan, Tajikistan and Uzbeki stan had stressed
the threat of destabilization posed to the countries of the region by the

Af ghan war. The Russian authorities called on all parties to the conflict,
and in particular the Taliban nmovenent, to put an end to hostilities and work
towards national reconciliation. The |arge-scale Taliban viol ence agai nst
civilians in northern Afghanistan gave cause for great concern. The
Commi ssi on shoul d seriously consider setting up a human rights operation in
that country.

60. The el ections of 14 Septenber 1996 had led to a new stage in the Bosnian
settlement. All parties should take advantage of the possibilities for peace
created by the international comunity. At the present stage, the Comm ssion
shoul d approach the renmaining probl enms objectively. The special attention
devoted by the international conmunity to the Serbian probl em had perhaps
distracted its attention fromthe enmergence of another crisis in the Bal kans.
That was a |l esson to be |earned for the future.

61. The cold war was over, but local wars were not. Despair and fear were
the lot of the inhabitants of the Great Lakes region of Africa. Russia called
upon all the parties involved to cease hostilities and engage in a serious
political dialogue pursuant to the resolutions of the Security Council and the



E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 12

deci sions of the QAU summits. Even though Russia was thousands of miles away,
it could not ignore events in the region, and the Government had decided to
send 100 tonnes of hurmanitarian aid to Rwanda and Zaire. The human rights
situation in Cyprus had been abnormal for many years. Progress would be

i npossi bl e without an agreenment by the parties to the conflict on the basic
principles of a settlenent.

62. Russi a had al ways accepted that its acts should be subject to debate,
and therefore sonmetines found it difficult to understand why the behaviour of
certain neighbouring States was not scrutinized as attentively as its own.
For exanple, the fact that 700,000 Russi an-speakers in Latvia and 300,000 in

Estoni a were deprived of many of their political, civil, econom c and socia
rights, and particularly the right to | eave their country and return to it,
had been conpletely ignored. It was tinme to end the double standards. Those

who accused Russia of political notivation when it discussed the fate of

t hose persons could make the same criticismof the Human Rights Committ ee,

whi ch had recently expressed concern at their situation in its reconmendations
and conclusions on the question. It was naturally easier to tal k about

the inperialistic anbitions of the Russian Federation than to abolish
discrimnatory laws. How was it possible that those who said they had
suffered from Soviet totalitariani smwere now using the same methods in

order to infringe the rights of mnorities? There again, the principle of

the universality of human rights was not being observed. In response to the
statements by the representatives of Latvia and Estonia that the probl em of

di scrim nation agai nst the Russi an-speaki ng populations in their countries was
an invention of his Governnent, he offered the exanple of Lithuania, which
unlike its neighbours, had resolved the problemof the |legal status of ethnic
Russi ans in 1991.

63. M. LINDGREN ALVES (Brazil) said that the international system for
the protection of human rights conprised two el enments: standards and
nmoni t ori ng nechani sns. | naugurated by the Universal Declaration of Human
Ri ghts, standard-setting had prevailed within the United Nations unti

the 1970s. At that tinme it was primarily the devel opi ng countries of
Africa, Asia and Latin America, inspired by feelings of solidarity with

t he peopl es of southern Africa, that had provided the main inpetus for
the creation of nonitoring nechanisns. Thanks to their action, the

i nternational comunity now had an inposing array of mechani sns,
conventional and non-conventional, that nonitored violations of human

ri ghts wherever they occurred. Non-conventional mechanisnms - thematic
rapporteurs, working groups and country rapporteurs - were the only

i nstruments, besides the reports of treaty bodies, on which the Comm ssion
could rely to learn about and redress situations requiring the attention
of the international community. They were thus essential elenents for

i nternational cooperation in the field of human rights.

64. It was frequently alleged that the international systemfor the
protection of human rights gave priority to nonitoring instead of cooperation
That was probably true, but it could hardly be otherw se, since nonitoring was
often the first essential step towards cooperation. It had often been said
that there was a divide between devel oped and devel opi ng countries in human
rights matters, particularly in terms of nmonitoring. His delegation was not



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 13

of that opinion, particularly because the nonitoring mechani sms had been set
up thanks to the action of devel oping countries. The nany accusations of
partiality |evelled against country rapporteurs were unwarranted.

65. Hi s Government was certainly not naive enough to state that politica

ai ms never notivated the Comm ssion's appointnments of special rapporteurs.
The speci al rapporteurs' conclusions sonetines displeased the Governnents
concerned, but it was not their task to please Governnments. The human rights
situation in many countries in different regions, including Central Anerica,
had been consi dered by special rapporteurs but, thanks to internationa

assi stance, those countries had been able to commit thenselves to the path of
denocracy. The situation was now dramatic in the Great Lakes region of
Africa, where the United Nations could and nmust play an essential role.

66. Having lived through a period of authoritarian rule, Brazilians knew the
i mportance of international solidarity fromtheir own experience. Solidarity
could be expressed in many forns, one of them being frank identification of
the problems noted. That was the task of the special rapporteurs, which
shoul d be assessed on its own nerits.

67. M. HYNES (Canada) said that the Conm ssion had two fundanental
responsibilities: to develop human rights standards and institutiona
arrangenents, and to find effective neans of putting those standards and
arrangenents to work. Sone people said that its nethods were too
confrontational and nust be replaced by cooperation. However, while
cooperation was the best way to address human rights problens, some sort

of confrontation, which consisted in facing the facts about human rights

vi ol ati ons, was indispensable to the Commi ssion's work. Unfortunately, many
Governnments refused to face the facts or to engage in genui ne cooperation with
the international comunity.

68. In Burma, the unrelenting repression of the denocracy novenent and a
new humanitarian crisis posed serious threats to security in the region
The State Law and Order Restoration Council (SLORC) rejected all overtures
for dialogue with the Special Rapporteur and the Representative of the
Secretary-Ceneral. In Iraq, the Governnment had taken no steps to end

wi despread human rights abuses and had refused all cooperation with the
Commi ssion's Rapporteur. In Iran, the human rights situati on showed no
sign of inprovement, and cooperation with the Conm ssion's Speci al
Representative appeared stalled. The increased bounty on Sal man Rushdie
showed contenpt for the international community.

69. In the Sudan, fresh fighting and indiscrimnate bonbi ngs were causing
grave suffering, while slavery, religious intolerance and discrimnation

agai nst wormen went unaddressed. His delegation regretted that the Specia
Rapporteur had been forced to cut short his visit to that country. In

Ni geria, the absence of representative governnment was underm ni ng due process
and the rule of law. Key recomendati ons of the United Nations fact-finding
m ssion of 1996 went uninpl enmented, and despite direct involvement in the
negoti ati ons, the Government had not permitted the two rapporteurs to visit
the country as agreed.



E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53

page 14

70. Some tried to explain human rights differences in terns of conflicting
values. In his delegation's view, that debate was a pol em cal dead-end.
Peopl e everywhere cherished both individual |iberty and the val ues of

comunity and sharing. Governnents could not nmeet their human rights
obl i gations by choosing from anong different human val ues or between economnic
devel opnent and political freedom

71. Canada wel coned China's achievenents in inproving |living standards
and its commtnment to nodernizing the | egal system However, it renmined
di sturbed by continued intolerance of dissent and constraints on freedom
of speech, association and religion. In Indonesia, there had been
encouragi ng signs, such as the greater accountability of the security
forces and prosecution of human rights violators, but there were stil
causes for concern. Canada was al so dismayed by the deteriorating human
rights conditions in East Tinor and hoped the security authorities there
woul d observe the greatest restraint. H's Government was al so aware of the
probl ems faced by the new Paki stani Governnent and urged it to continue to
combat religious intolerance.

72. Hi s Government wel conmed the intensified dialogue with Cuba on human
ri ghts and governance. However, it urged the Cuban Governnment to match its
achi evenents on social and econonmic rights with a genui ne opening on civi
and political rights. It should also cooperate with the Special Rapporteur
and the thematic rapporteurs.

73. The post-cold war era had seen a resurgence of internal conflicts, as
for example in the Geat Lakes region of Africa. Canada wel coned the Rwandan
Governnment's cooperation with the human rights Field Operation in that country
and its efforts to reintegrate the returning refugees. Nonetheless, it

remai ned troubl ed by reports of severe human rights abuses, including nmurders
and sumuary executions. It saluted the holding of the first genocide trials,
but was concerned that the rights of the defendants had not received the
necessary protection. Hi s Government condemed the violence and terror
directed against civilians in Burundi; it urged the parties to the conflict

in Zaire to respect the rights of non-conbatants and reach a peaceful solution
t hrough negoti ati on.

74. In the fornmer Yugoslavia, there were unacceptable delays in bringing to
justice persons indicted for war crines. Respect for mnority rights stil
needed to be strengthened and a greater effort was needed in order to effect
broad denocratic reforns.

75. I n Af ghani stan, the conflict continued and serious human rights

vi ol ati ons persisted, while wonen endured uni magi ned repression. Canada
called on the parties to the conflict to respect international human rights
standards and cooperate with the United Nations Special M ssion to Afghanistan
in order to achieve a peaceful settlement. |In India, the situation continued
to inprove, and violence in the Punjab had ended. However, Canada remai ned
concerned about the situation in Kashmr



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 15

76. Hi s Government hoped the final peace agreenent in Guatemal a would | ead
to further inprovenent in the human rights situation and renewed its support
for the work of the Mssion for the Verification of Human Rights in Guatenal a
(M NUGUA) and the I ndependent Expert.

77. In some countries, guerrilla or paramlitary groups posed a rea

threat to internal stability and human rights. Such threats, however, did
not absolve Covernnents of their responsibility to respect human rights. 1In
Colonmbia, in the face of a deteriorating situation marked by extrajudicial
killings, disappearances and inmpunity, the new United Nations Human Ri ghts

O fice and the Government had nuch to acconplish; Canada urged the Governnment
to dismantl e the paramilitary groups and protect the civilian population from
the guerrillas. Peru should persist in its efforts to strengthen denocratic
institutions and pronote broader respect for human rights; Canada condemmed
the seizure by the Tupac Amaru Revol uti onary Myvenent (MRTA) of the Linma

resi dence of the Anbassador of Japan and urged all parties to seek a peacefu
and rapid sol ution.

78. In Sri Lanka, violence agai nst wonen and the increase in disappearances
attributed to security forces had given rise to renewed concern. Canada
condemmed the human rights abuses conmitted by the Liberation Tigers of

Tam | Eel am however, those abuses did not justify violations by others. The
Gover nment shoul d consider inviting special rapporteurs or working groups to
visit the country. He welconed the Turkish Governnent's decisions to shorten
t he maxi mum perm ssi bl e period of detention without trial and to create a

hi gh-1evel human rights coordinating commttee. Canada urged Turkey to
respond to the requests for invitations by the Special Rapporteur on torture
and the Working Group on Enforced or Involuntary Di sappearances.

79. No Governnent had a nonopoly on noral high ground and no country was
wi thout its human rights problens. That was certainly true of Canada. 1In
addition to addressing its problens through its own institutions, Canada was
committed to ongoing cooperation with the Comm ssion and intended to honour
the obligation inposed by the Charter on States parties to pronote “universa
respect for, and observance of, human rights and fundanental freedons for
all”.

80. M. ANTONI O FERNANDEZ (Cuba) said that, 36 years earlier, the Nicaraguan
di ctator Sonpbza had al |l owed nercenary brigade No. 2506, directed by the
Central Intelligence Agency (CIA) and the Cuban-inspired counter-revol ution

to | eave Nicaraguan territory in order to attack Cuba. That attack had been a
failure and constituted the first nmajor defeat of Anerican inperialismin the
western hem sphere. The new Ni caraguan Government had now deci ded to renounce
its sovereignty in order to carry out actions against Cuba by agreeing to
include in its delegation an avowed terrorist fromthe Mam nmafia.

81. M. PAGUAGA FERNANDEZ (Ni caragua), speaking on a point of order, asked
the Chairman to request the delegation of Cuba to refrain frominsulting
menbers of the Nicaraguan del egation




E/ CN/ 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 16

82. The CHAIRMAN invited the Cuban del egation to continue its statenent,
respecting the formalities required for the proper conduct of the Comm ssion's
work. Al'l nmenbers of the N caraguan del egati on had been accredited in
accordance with the rules.

83. M. ANTONI O FERNANDEZ (Cuba) said that terrorismwas a well-defined
concept and he intended to exercise his right to reply to the statenment just
made by the Ni caraguan del egation, which was insulting for Cuba. If that
del egation so desired, it could exercise its right of reply in turn

84. The decl ared objective of the N caraguan statenent had been to
denounce the so-called violations of human rights in Cuba, but there was
every indication that it was really a matter of avenging the notorious
tyranny of Sonmpbza. Throughout their history, the N caraguan and Cuban
peopl es had shown they had conmon aspirations and ideals; thousands of Cuban
teachers, doctors and consultants had contributed to the reconstruction of

Ni caragua following the fall of Sonpza. That was why, when the Cuban people
saw that the N caraguan people had been betrayed and had pl aced their
confidence in a representative now allied with their enemes, they felt
betrayed as wel |

85. Once again, the consideration of agenda item 10 had given rise to
confrontation rather than di al ogue and cooperation. The arrogance of those
who set thenselves up as strict judges and believed that nothing that was done
in the South could be considered prai seworthy or even appropriate was again
apparent. However, the countries of the South had nmuch experience in the
struggl e for human rights, which had been denied for centuries by an unjust

i nternational order. The struggle against colonialismhad then been repl aced
by other priorities, such as the eradication of poverty, illiteracy, hunger
and curabl e diseases - in short, by the struggle for the right to devel opment.
In practice, denocracy and the rule of law would remain figments of the

i magi nation until practical solutions were found to the real problens faced by
t he peopl es of the South.

86. While efforts were being nmade to denpnize certain countries, other
countries were commtting the nbpst heinous atrocities with total inmpunity
every day. Astonishing as that night seem the reports of the Conm ssion
never mentioned human rights violations conmritted by the wealthy countries.

87. However, there was no shortage of human rights violations in the
devel oped world. In the European Union, for exanple, there were nore

than 18 million unenpl oyed and nore than 300, 000 prisoners, including
political prisoners and prisoners of conscience. Those who presuned to
give lessons in tolerance and pluralismdid not hesitate to apply energency
measures whenever they felt that constitutional order and public security
were in danger. At the sanme tine, an alnost institutionalized form of

raci smwas energing in Europe and increasingly discrimnatory inmgration
| aws were being enacted. His del egation acknow edged the efforts of the
Japanese authorities to pass a |law establishing a commttee to investigate
the practices of sexual slavery followed in the past. 1In Australia, the
situation of the Aborigines and the Torres Strait |slanders renained a



E/ CN. 4/ 1997/ SR. 53
page 17

matter of concern. In Canada, inpressive econonm c devel opnent had not
benefited the indi genous popul ati ons, who were at the very bottom of the
soci al scal e.

88. It was, however, not far fromthe shores of Cuba, in the United States,
that the nost flagrant violations of human rights and the nost serious

i nfringenments of human dignity in a devel oped and weal thy country were to

be found. The Anmerican dreamremained a nightnare for vast sectors of

the popul ation, in particular the many mllions of African-Anmericans,

Latin Anericans, Asians and indi genous Anericans encountering injustice and
discrimnation, as well as the many m|lions of persons for whomthe rights
to food, housing, health and education were no nore than dreans. An analysis
of the recent presidential and legislative elections in the United States
showed that the average budget of a candidate for Congress was $4.5 mllion
In those circunstances, what ordinary citizen could fulfil his politica
aspirations? |In that country, indigenous peoples continued to be the victins
of one of the greatest injustices of recent history. After having been nearly
exterm nated and expelled fromtheir ancestral |ands, they were now parked in
so-called “reservations”. The nost revealing i mage of the real human rights
situation in the United States was that provided by the |egal and prison
system According to data fromthe United States Departnent of Justice, the
rate of inprisonnent for Blacks was six tines higher than for Whites. |If the
trend continued, by the year 2021 an absolute majority of African-American nmen
aged between 18 and 40 would be in prison or in rehabilitation canps. Such
was the nodel that was being inposed as a universal paradigmfor the
observance of human rights. Unfortunately, that reality never received the
slightest condemation in the Conmission or in the nedia of the devel oped
countries.

89. The elimnation of those violations and full respect for all human
rights nust be anong the objectives of the United Nations. Cuba reaffirmed
its support for the United Nations in that undertaki ng and hoped that human
rights would be fully realized through dial ogue and cooperati on

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




